MUR757900053

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
Washington, DC 20463

December 13, 2021

BY ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY
mbrewer@goodmanacker.com
Mark Brewer, Esq.

Goodman Acker P.C.

17000 West Ten Mile, Second Floor
Southfield, MI 48075

RE: MUR 7579
Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Soh
Suzuki in his official capacity as

treasurer
Rashida Tlaib

Dear Mr. Brewer:

On March 20, 2019, the Federal Election Commission notified your clients, Rashida
Tlaib for Congress and Soh Suzuki in his official capacity as treasurer and Rashida Tlaib, of a
complaint alleging violations of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended. A
copy of the complaint was forwarded to your clients at the time. Upon further review of the
allegations contained in the complaint and information supplied by you, the Commission, on
December 2, 2021, voted to dismiss the matter and close the file. The Factual and Legal
Analysis, which more fully explains the Commission’s decision, is enclosed for your
information.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days. See
Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702
(Aug. 2, 2016).
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If you have any questions, please contact Thaddeus H. Ewald, the attorney assigned to
this matter, at (202) 694-1650.

Sincerely,

Mark Allen
Assistant General Counsel

Enclosure:
Factual and Legal Analysis
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

RESPONDENTS: Rashida Tlaib for Congress MUR 7579
and Soh Suzuki in his official capacity
as treasurer
Rashida Tlaib

I. INTRODUCTION

This matter was generated by a Complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission
(the “Commission”).! The Complaint alleges that Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Soh Suzuki in
his official capacity as treasurer (“Committee”) and Rashida Tlaib (collectively, “Respondents”™)
violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”), and Commission
regulations by converting campaign funds to personal use by making two candidate salary
payments to Tlaib after the date of the general election.?

As set forth below, the Commission exercises its prosecutorial discretion and dismisses
the allegation that Respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b) and 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(1)(])
by converting campaign funds to personal use.

II. FACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS
A. Factual Background
Rashida Tlaib was a first-time candidate in Michigan’s 13th Congressional District in

2018.° During the first four months of 2018 she worked full-time at Sugar Law Center for

! See 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(1).

2 The Complaint also alleges Tlaib violated the law by running in a Congressional district in which she did

not live and refusing to disclose income and the source thereof on her financial disclosure forms for the U.S. House
of Representatives upon her election. The Commission lacks jurisdiction to consider these allegations.

3 See Rashida Tlaib for Congress Resp. at 2 (May 13, 2019) (“Tlaib Resp.”). Tlaib won the Democratic
primary election on August 7, 2018, and won the general election on November 6, 2018. See FEC, FEDERAL
ELECTIONS 2018: ELECTION RESULTS FOR THE U.S. SENATE AND THE U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Oct. 2019),
https://www.fec.gov/resources/cms-content/documents/federalelections2018.pdf.
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Economic & Social Justice in Detroit.* On May 1, 2018, Tlaib reduced her employment by 85%,
reducing her total income to about $200 per week.’ During the candidate’s primary election
campaign and carrying on through the general election campaign, the Committee paid Tlaib a bi-
weekly salary of $2,000.° The Complaint identifies two salary payments totaling $17,500 that
were disbursed to Tlaib after the November 6, 2018, general election: $2,000 on November 16,
2018, and $15,500 on December 1, 2018.”

According to the Complaint, these payments violated the Act and Commission
regulations because they were made after Tlaib won the general election on November 6, 2018,
and was no longer a candidate.® Respondents contend that “[a]ll salary payments were for the
covered period prior to the November 6, 2018 general election,” and therefore do not violate the
Act or Commission regulations.’

While this matter was pending with the Commission, the Office of Congressional Ethics,

on April 13, 2019, commenced a preliminary review into the Committee’s salary payments to

4 Tlaib Resp. at 2; see SUGAR LAW CTR., https://www.sugarlaw.org/ (last visited Mar. 26, 2021).
3 Tlaib Resp. at 2.

6

The Committee made its first salary payment to Tlaib on May 7, 2018, see Rashida Tlaib for Congress,
2018 July Quarterly Report at 298 (July 15, 2018), and through December 1, 2018, the Committee disbursed a total
of $45,500 in salary payments to Tlaib. See Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2018 July Quarterly Report at 298-99

(July 15, 2018); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2018 12-Day Pre-Primary Report at 113 (July 26, 2018); Rashida Tlaib
for Congress, Amended 2018 October Quarterly Report at 291-92 (Nov. 26, 2018); Rashida Tlaib for Congress,
2018 12-Day Pre-General Report at 87-88 (Oct. 25, 2018); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2018 30-Day Post-General
Report at 90 (Dec. 5, 2018); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2018 Year-End Report at 32 (Jan. 22, 2019); see also Tlaib
Resp. at 2.

7 Compl. at 1-2 (Mar. 15, 2019). The Complaint references the Washington Free Beacon as the source of the

allegations, but does not cite a specific article. See id. at 1; Joe Schoffstall, Rashida Tlaib Paid Herself $45,500
from Campaign Funds, WASH. FREE BEACON (Mar. 1, 2019), https://freebeacon.com/politics/rashida-tlaib-paid-
herself-45500-from-campaign-funds/.

8 Compl. at 1.

9 Tlaib Resp. at 2-5. In particular, Respondents argue that, under their interpretation, Commission

regulations permit payment of salary covering time through the date of the general election but do not require that
payment to be made by the date of the general election. /d. Respondents further assert that the total salary paid to
Tlaib in 2018 ($45,500) did not exceed the maximum amount allowed because it was less than her 2017 earned
income ($129,357) and less than the annual salary of a U.S. Representative ($174,000). Id. at 3.


https://freebeacon.com/politics/rashida-tlaib-paid
https://www.sugarlaw.org

MUR757900057

MUR 7579 (Rashida Tlaib for Congress, et al.)
Factual and Legal Analysis
Page 3 of 6

Tlaib and then on August 16, 2019, referred the matter to the U.S. House of Representatives
Committee on Ethics (“House Ethics Committee™) for further investigation.!® On July 23, 2020,
the House Ethics Committee completed its investigation and issued a report with its findings and
conclusions on August 7, 2020.!! The report concluded that $10,800 of the Committee’s post-
election salary payments to Tlaib corresponding to post-election periods were “inconsistent with
[the Act]’s personal use restrictions.”'? As a result, the House Ethics Committee directed Tlaib
to reimburse her campaign $10,800 within a year of August 7, 2020.'* The Committee’s
disclosure reports show that Tlaib made the required reimbursements in seven installments

between November 13, 2020, and August 3, 2021.'4

10 See OFFICE OF CONG. ETHICS, FINDINGS OF FACT AND CITATIONS TO LAW AND EXHIBITS, REVIEW NO. 19-

4114 at 1 & 910 (Aug. 9, 2019) (“OCE Report”), https://oce house.gov/sites/congressionalethics house.gov/
files/documents/OCE%20Review%20N0.%2019-4114 Referral.pdf; https://oce.house.gov/sites/congressional
ethics.house.gov/files/documents/Referral%20Exhibits.pdf. On August 9, 2019, the Office of Congressional Ethic
(“OCE”) found that there is “substantial reason to believe that Rep. Tlaib converted campaign funds from Rashida
Tlaib for Congress to personal use or Rep. Tlaib’s campaign committee expended funds that were not attributable to
bona fide campaign or political purposes” and voted to refer the matter to the House Ethics Committee. OCE
Report at 1 & 4 10. On August 16, 2019, OCE transmitted its report and findings to the House Ethics Committee.
Id. § 11. On November 14, 2019, the House Ethics Committee announced it would review the matter further to
“gather additional information” and published the OCE Report, accompanying exhibits, and Tlaib’s response. Press
Release, U.S. House of Representatives Comm. on Ethics, Statement of the Chairman and Ranking Member of the
Committee on Ethics Regarding Representative Rashida Tlaib (Nov. 14, 2019), https://ethics.house.gov/press-
release/statement-chairman-and-ranking-member-committee-cthics-regarding-representative-17.

11

COMM. ON ETHICS, IN THE MATTER OF ALLEGATIONS RELATING TO REPRESENTATIVE RASHIDA TLAIB, H.R.
REP. No. 116-473 (2020) (“HEC Report™), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CRPT-116hrpt473/pdf/CRPT-
116hrpt473.pdf.

12 Id. at 1-2

13

Id. at 2. The report also noted, however, that “Tlaib engaged in good faith efforts to comply with the
relevant FECA requirements” and described the violation as “one of bad timing and not ill intent.” Id. at 1-2. The
House Ethics Committee concluded that there was no evidence that Tlaib “sought to unjustly enrich herself” and
thus decided that a sanction was not warranted. Id. at 2.

14 See Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2021 October Quarterly Report at 814 (Oct. 15, 2021); Rashida Tlaib for
Congress, 2021 July Quarterly Report at 762 (July 15, 2021); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2021 April Quarterly
Report at 256 (Apr. 15, 2021); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2020 30-Day Post General Report at 451 (Dec. 3, 2020).


https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CRPT-116hrpt473/pdf/CRPT
https://ethics.house.gov/press
https://oce.house.gov/sites/congressional
https://house.gov
https://house.gov/sites/congressionalethics
https://oce
https://investigation.10
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B. Legal Analysis

Under the Act, a contribution accepted by a candidate may be used by the candidate for
otherwise authorized expenditures in connection with the campaign for federal office of the
candidate.!> However, a contribution shall not be converted by any person to personal use. '°
“Personal use” means any use of funds in a campaign account of a present or former candidate to
fulfill a commitment, obligation, or expense of any person that would exist irrespective of the
candidate’s campaign or duties as a federal officeholder.!’

The Act and Commission regulations enumerate certain expenses that are considered per
se “personal use” and thus prohibited, including salary payments to a candidate that do not meet
specified criteria.'® A candidate’s principal campaign committee may pay a salary to the
candidate that will not constitute personal use of campaign funds so long as it does not exceed
the lesser of the minimum salary paid to a Federal officeholder holding the Federal office that the
candidate seeks or the earned income that the candidate received during the year prior to
becoming a candidate.!” Any earned income that a candidate receives from salaries or wages
from any other source, however, shall count against the minimum salary paid to a federal
officeholder holding the seat sought by the candidate.?® Moreover, the committee shall not pay
salary to a candidate before the filing deadline for access to the primary election ballot for the

Federal office that the candidate seeks, as determined by state law.?! During the time period in

is 52 U.S.C. § 30114(a)(1).

16 Id. § 30114(b)(1).

17 Id. § 30114(b)(2); 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g).

18 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b)(2); 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)()(D).
19 11 C.FR. § 113.1(2)(1)()(D).

1d. Upon request of the Commission, the candidate must provide evidence of earned income. /d.

21 1d.


https://candidate.20
https://candidate.19
https://criteria.18
https://officeholder.17
https://candidate.15
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which a principal campaign committee may pay a salary to a candidate, such payment must be
computed on a pro-rata basis.?? If the candidate wins the primary election, his or her principal
campaign committee may pay him or her a salary from campaign funds through the date of the
general election.?> The payment of salary to candidates that do not meet these conditions is
considered per se personal use.?*

The Complaint in this matter alleges that the Committee impermissibly disbursed two
salary payments to Tlaib after the November 6, 2018, general election when she was no longer a
federal candidate. This same allegation was also the subject of congressional ethics proceedings
in the House of Representatives, which included an investigation by the House Ethics Committee
that involved reviewing more than 600 pages of materials and interviewing five witnesses,
including Tlaib herself.>> Following its investigation, the House Ethics Committee determined
that $10,800 of the salary payments Tlaib received from her campaign after the November 6
general election violated the Act’s personal use restrictions. Specifically, the House Ethics
Committee determined that $1,200 of the $2,000 November 16 salary payment to Tlaib covered
a period of time after the November 6 general election.?® Similarly, the House Ethics Committee

determined that $9,600 of the $15,500 salary payment Tlaib received on December 1 covered a

2 Id. This is intended to prevent a candidate’s principal campaign committee from paying the candidate the

entire minimum annual salary for the Federal office sought by the candidate, unless he or she is a candidate, as
defined by 11 C.F.R. § 100.3(a), for at least one year. See Disclaimers, Fraudulent Solicitation, Civil Penalties, and
Personal Use of Campaign Funds; 67 Fed. Reg. 76,962, 76,972 (Dec. 13, 2002) (“Personal Use E&J”).

2 11 C.FR. § 113.1(2)(1)()D.

24 1d.; see also Personal Use E&J, 67 Fed. Reg. at 76,972.
% HEC Report at 2.
26 Id. at 16-17. Specifically, the House Ethics Committee determined that $800 of the November 16 payment

was for a period of time when she was still a candidate — November 1 through November 6. Id. at 16. However,
the House Ethics Committee determined that the remaining $1,200 was for the November 7 through November 15
time period in which she was no longer a candidate. /d. at 17.


https://election.26
https://herself.25
https://election.23
https://basis.22
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period of time after the November 6 general election.?’ To resolve these violations, the House
Ethics Committee directed Tlaib to reimburse her campaign committee $10,800.2% The
Committee’s disclosure reports confirm that Tlaib has complied with this reimbursement
directive.?’ Under these circumstances, and in light of the fact that the salary payments were not
in excess of Tlaib’s maximum salary threshold, the Commission concludes that further
enforcement action in this matter would not be a prudent use of the agency’s limited resources.
Accordingly, the Commission exercises its prosecutorial discretion and dismisses the allegations

in this matter.>°

2 Id. at 19. The House Ethics Committee determined that $9,600 of the December 1 payment was
impermissible because it represented compensation for post-election pay periods in November and the entire month
of December. Id. at 17-19. As for the remaining $5,900 of the December 1 payment, the House Ethics Committee
determined that it was for work performed before the general election but paid affer the election under a deferred
compensation or back pay agreement between Tlaib and the Committee. Id. at 17-19. Although the House Ethics
Committee credited the existence of such an agreement, it noted that the Commission had “not specifically stated
whether ‘deferred compensation’ or ‘back pay’ arrangements are permissible” under the Act. Id. at 14-16, 20-21.
And the Commission declines to do so here.

28 Id. at 2.

2 See Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2021 October Quarterly Report at 814 (Oct. 15, 2021); Rashida Tlaib for
Congress, 2021 July Quarterly Report at 762 (July 15, 2021); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2021 April Quarterly
Report at 256 (Apr. 15, 2021); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2020 30-Day Post General Report at 451 (Dec. 3, 2020).

30 See Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 821, 831 (1985).


https://matter.30
https://directive.29
https://10,800.28
https://election.27
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	FROM: Sheila Oxsher 
	Columbus, OH 43207 
	RE: FEC COMPLAINT ABOUT FEC RULES BEING VIOLATED 
	March 11, 2019 
	To Whom It May Concern: 
	Rashica Tlaib 
	According to property records, they were falsified because her address, when she ran for her district, she ran for a district she did not live in. Rashica was in violation there of FEC Rules and Regulations. 
	Her own father actually told the Detroit press the same thing. The house she used to register to run, was his house and she did not live in that district. He claimed she lied, he said he taught his daughter better that that, I do not know why she did this. He noted she lied to run for congress. 
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	In 2018, right before she decided to run for John Connor's seat she changed her address. This needs to be investigated. 
	Washington Free Beacon, reported Rashica paid herself illegally, campaign funds which is in violation of the FEC laws. She paid herself $45,000 dollars and made an additional $17,000 payment to herself after she had already won the election. 
	According to FEC filings she first started paying herself on May 7, 2018 from the Rashica Tlaib's for Congress fund. After she won her election, she continued to pay herself, which is against the FEC rules. 
	Tlaib paid herself a $2,000 check on November 16th, which was 10 days after the election and then $15,500 on December 1st. FEC guidelines say, "If a candidate wins the election, a candidate can only pay themselves up to two weeks after the election." So the December 1st payment is clearly in violation as the election happened on November 6th. The $i,ooo payment may be well within the window. The December 1st payment is clearly against the FEC rules. This needs to be investigated. 
	Figure
	Tlaib received $68,000 dollars of income from a "Leadership in Government Fellowship" in 2017. She refuse to disclose who the organization was that was paying her that kind of money and she left the name off her disclosure forms. This is a violation of the House of Representatives Committee on ethics. The Fellowship was awarded by George Soros and his Open Society Institute. 
	The Washington Free Beacon was provided copies of Tax Return for all entities that are run by George Soros and his Open Society Institute. On page 97 of the 321 page tax form, it shows payment to a Rashida Tlaib for a "Leadership in Government Fellowship" in total from 2016 until now Rashida has received $225,000 dollars according to the Open Society Institutes/ tax records/ 
	Sincerely 
	Sk3~ctU~ 
	Sk3~ctU~ 
	Sheila A. Oxsher 
	~(MVl m UWi/c., ~,c.>~~ t5 \--vv~u--~ 
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	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	MAR 2 0 2019 
	Rashida Tlaib 680 Delaware, #303 Detroit, MI 48202 
	RE: MUR 7579 
	Dear Ms. Tlaib: 
	The Federal Election Commission received a complaint that indicates you may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the "Act"). A copy ofthe complaint is enclosed. We have numbered this matter MUR 7579. Please refer to this number in all future correspondence. 
	The Act affords you the opportunity to demonstrate in writing that no action should be taken against you in this matter. Ifyou wish to file a response, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the Commission's consideration ofthis matter. Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under oath by persons with relevant knowledge. Your response, which should be addressed to the General Counsel's Office, must be submitted within 15 days ofreceipt ofthis letter. Ifno r
	This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and § 30109(a)(l2)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public. Please be advised that, although the Commission cannot disclose information regarding an investigation to the public, it may share information on a confidential basis with other law enforcement agencies. 
	1 

	Ifyou intend to be represented by counsel in this matter, please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed form stating the name, address and telephone number ofsuch counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and other communications from the Commission. Please note that you have a legal obligation to preserve all documents, records, and materials relating to the subject matter ofthe complaint until such time as you are notified that the Commission has closed its file in this 
	The Commission has the statutory authority to refer knowing and willful violations ofthe Act to the Department ofJustice for potential criminal prosecution, 52 U.S.C. § 30I 09(a)(5)(C), and to report information regarding violations oflaw not within its jurisdiction to appropriate law enforcement authorities. Id § 30I 07(a)(9). 
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	by email): 
	by email): 
	by email): 

	Mail 
	Mail 
	OR 
	Email 

	Federal Election Commission Office of Complaints Examination & Legal Administration Attn: Kathryn Ross, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	Federal Election Commission Office of Complaints Examination & Legal Administration Attn: Kathryn Ross, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	cela@fec.gov 


	If you have any questions, please contact Kathryn Ross at (202) 694-1539 or toll free at 1-800-424-9530. For your information, we have enclosed a brief description of the Commission's procedures for handling complaints. 
	~ 
	' eff S. Jordan Assistant General Counsel Complaints Examination & Legal Administration 
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	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, O.C. 20463 
	Soh Suzuki 
	Soh Suzuki 
	Soh Suzuki 
	MAR 2 0 2019 

	Rashida Tlaib for Congress 
	Rashida Tlaib for Congress 

	P.O. Box 32777 
	P.O. Box 32777 

	Detroit, MI 48232 
	Detroit, MI 48232 

	TR
	RE: MUR 7579 

	Dear Mr. Suzuki: 
	Dear Mr. Suzuki: 


	The Federal Election Commission received a complaint that indicates Rashida Tlaib for Congress and you in your official capacity as treasurer may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the "Act"). A copy ofthe complaint is enclosed. We have numbered this matter MUR 7579. Please refer to this number in all future correspondence. 
	The Act affords you the opportunity to demonstrate in writing that no action should be taken against Rashida Tlaib for Congress and you in your official capacity as treasurer. in this matter. If you wish to file a response, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the Commission's consideration ofthis matter. Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under oath by persons with relevant knowledge. Your response, which should be addressed to the General Counsel's 
	This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and § 30109(a)(l 2)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public. Please be advised that, although the Commission cannot disclose information regarding an investigation to the public, it may share information on a confidential basis with other law enforcement agencies. 
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	The Commission has the statutory authority to refer knowing and willful violations ofthe Act to the Department ofJustice for potential criminal prosecution, 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(C), and to report information regarding violations oflaw not within its jurisdiction to appropriate law enforcement authorities. Id. § 30I 07(a)(9). 
	Any correspondence sent to the Commission, such as a response, must be addressed to one ofthe following (note, ifsubmitting via email this Office will provide an electronic receipt 
	by email): 
	by email): 
	by email): 

	Mail 
	Mail 
	OR 
	Email 

	Federal Election Commission Office of Complaints Examination & Legal Administration Attn: Kathryn Ross, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	Federal Election Commission Office of Complaints Examination & Legal Administration Attn: Kathryn Ross, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	cela@fec.gov 


	If you have any questions, please contact Kathryn Ross at (202) 694-1539 or toll free at 1-800-424-9530. For your information, we have enclosed a brief description ofthe Commission's procedures for handling complaints. 
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	Complaints Examination & Legal Administration 
	Figure
	From: 
	From: 
	From: 
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	To: 
	To: 
	CELA 

	Cc: 
	Cc: 
	Mark Brewer 

	Subject: 
	Subject: 
	MUR 7579 -Statement of Designation of Counsel 

	Date: 
	Date: 
	Thursday, March 28, 2019 11:34:20 PM 

	Attachments: 
	Attachments: 
	2019 03 28 MUR 7579 Designation of Counsel.pdf 


	To Whom It May Concern: 
	In response to the communication received on March 27, 2019 (MUR 7579), I am submitting the Statement of Designation of Counsel, designating Mark Brewer with Goodman Acker, to represent the committee on this matter.  The statement is attached to this communication in PDF format. 
	Please let me know if any other information is needed at this point. 
	I can be reached at this e-mail address 
	Soh Suzuki, Campaign Treasurer 
	Soh Suzuki 
	 or at 
	Figure
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION lo.50 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
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	Provide one fonn for each Respondent/Witness 
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	EMAIL cela@fec.gov 
	EMAIL cela@fec.gov 
	FAX 202-219-3923 
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	notifications 8tld·omer conummications from the Commission and to act on my behalf before the Commission. 
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	Figure
	Title 
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	(Please print Committee Name/ Company Nam2dividual Named in Notification Letter) 
	MailingAddress: ____;,f._._O_. _B_o_x_3_2_7_7_1__________ 
	(P!~P,:...~ 
	D~i'+ tv11 tf-i2:32
	-

	Home#: __________Mobile#: _____ _____ 
	Office#: __________Fax#: ___________ 
	E-mail: ________~-------------------
	-

	This form relates to a Federal Election Commission matter that is subject to the confidentiality provisions of52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(12XA}. This section prohibits making public any notification or investigation conducted by the Federal Election Commission without the express wrwcu w~tofme person under invesbgation. 
	~.2018 
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	Washington, DC 20463 

	1i,1rEsol:" 
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	STATEMENT OF DESIGNATION OF COUNSEL 
	Provide one form for each Respondent/Witness 
	FAX 202-219-3923 
	EMAIL cela@fec.gov 

	AR/MUR/RR/P-MUR# (h y{ t2._ ½" 11 
	Name of Counsel: 
	Met,,-f-l3 re,, vJ~ < 
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	-

	Address: lod:) ' /..ij'\ vY} I (<l \ ~Fl<J>o v-
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	Mobile#: ______ _ ____ 
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	This form relates to a Federal Election Commission matter that is subject to the confidentiality provisions of 52 U.S.C. § 30109(aXI 2)(A). This section prohibits making public any notification or investigation conducted by the Federal Election Commission without the express written consent ofthe person under investigation. 
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	From: 
	From: 
	From: 
	Mark Brewer 

	To: 
	To: 
	CELA 

	Subject: 
	Subject: 
	MUR 7579 

	Date: 
	Date: 
	Monday, April 08, 2019 1:46:24 PM 


	This is to request an extension of seven (7) days until April 18, 2019 to respond to the complaint. Preparing the response involves searching for and reviewing campaign records which takes some time, necessitating this request for a short extension. Thank you for your consideration. 
	Mark Brewer 
	Mark Brewer Attorney Goodman Acker P.C. 17000 West Ten Mile, Second Floor Southfield, Michigan 48075 
	MBrewer@goodmanacker.com 
	MBrewer@goodmanacker.com 

	248-483-5000 Phone 248-483-3131 Fax 
	www.goodmanacker.com 
	www.goodmanacker.com 

	Figure
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	, 2019 
	Figure

	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	VIA E-MAIL 
	Mark Brewer Goodman Acker P.C. 17000 West Ten Mile, Second Floor Southfield, MI 48075 
	RE: MUR 7579 
	Rashida Tlaib 
	Rashida Tlaib for Congress and
	   Soh Suzuki, Treasurer 
	Dear Mr. Brewer: 
	This is in response to your request for an extension to respond to the complaint filed in the above mentioned matter we received via e-mail on April 8, 2019.  After considering the circumstances in this matter, the Office of General Counsel has granted the requested extension.  Accordingly, your client’s response is due on or before the close of business April 18, 2019. You may contact me if you have any questions at 202-694-1539 or by e-mail at . 
	cela@fec.gov

	Sincerely, 
	Figure
	Kathryn Ross, Paralegal Complaints Examination and Legal Administration 
	Figure
	From: 
	From: 
	From: 
	Mark Brewer 

	To: 
	To: 
	CELA 

	Subject: 
	Subject: 
	Re: MUR 7579 

	Date: 
	Date: 
	Tuesday, April 16, 2019 3:21:35 PM 


	I apologize for the typo in my previous email. The extension request will take the due date to May 9, 2019. 
	Sent from my iPad 
	On Apr 16, 2019, at 12:44 PM, Mark Brewer <> wrote: 
	mbrewer@goodmanacker.com

	The search and review of campaign records which was the basis for my initial extension request has taken longer than anticipated. This is to request an additional twenty-one 
	(21) days, or until April 29, 2019, to respond to the complaint. Thank you for your consideration. 
	Mark Brewer 
	Mark Brewer Attorney Goodman Acker P.C. 17000 West Ten Mile, Second Floor Southfield, Michigan 48075 
	MBrewer@goodmanacker.com 
	MBrewer@goodmanacker.com 

	248-483-5000 Phone 248-483-3131 Fax 
	www.goodmanacker.com 
	www.goodmanacker.com 
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	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	April 18, 2019 
	VIA E-MAIL 
	Mark Brewer Goodman Acker P.C. 17000 West Ten Mile, Second Floor Southfield, MI 48075 
	RE: MUR 7579 
	Rashida Tlaib 
	Rashida Tlaib for Congress and 
	Soh Suzuki, Treasurer 
	Dear Mr. Brewer: 
	This is in response to your request for an extension to respond to the complaint filed in the above mentioned matter we received via e-mail on April 16, 2019. After considering the circumstances in this matter, the Office of General Counsel has granted the requested extension.  Accordingly, your client’s response is due on or before the close of business May 9, 2019. You may contact me if you have any questions at 202-694-1539 or by e-mail at . 
	cela@fec.gov

	Sincerely, 
	Figure
	Kathryn Ross, Paralegal Complaints Examination and Legal Administration 
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	CELA 
	CELA 
	MARK BREWER 
	JORDAN B. ACKER RONITA BAHRI MICHELLE T. AARON
	Jeff S. Jordan, Assistant General Counsel 
	LEAH S. HOUGABOOM AMANDA B.WARNBR BART P. O'NEILL
	Federal Election Commission 

	Office of Complaints Examination 
	& Legal Administration 
	'Al.SO ADMITTED INDC
	1050 First Street, NE 
	.. ,. ALSO ADMITTED IN fl.ORIDA 
	Washington, D.C. 20463 
	www.goodmanacker.com 
	www.goodmanacker.com 

	ATTN: Kathryn Ross, Paralegal 
	Re: MUR 7579 
	Dear Mr. Jordan: 
	We are legal counsel for Congresswoman Rashida Tlaib, Rashida Tlaib for Congress, and its Treasurer, Soh Suzuki, in this matter. 
	This is their response to the meritless allegations in the complaint. 
	I. Introduction 
	Under Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 821 (1985), the FEC has broad prosecutorial discretion to dismiss matters that do not warrant expenditure of FEC resources. This is such a matter -the complaint is a poorly drafted, mistake-filledhodgepodge of rumor­based allegations with no evidence submitted to support it. 
	1 

	Should the Commission decide to investigate, it should make a determination of "no reason to believe" under its enforcement policies in "Matters at the Initial Stage of Enforcement Process," 72 Fed. Reg. 12,545 (2007). The residency and fellowship allegations "fail to describe a violation of the Act." Id. at 546. As to the salary payment allegations, the "evidence convincingly demonstrates that no violation has occurred." Id. 
	11. Residency 
	The complaint alleges that Congresswoman Tlaib "ran for a district she did not live in." 
	This is meritless for several reasons. First, at all relevant times here, she has lived in the 13Congressional District at 680 Delaware Street, #303, Detroit as demonstrated 
	th 

	17000 WEST TEN MILE ROAD, SECOND FLOOR • SOUTHFIELD, MICHIGAN 48075 • PHONE 248.483.5000 • FAx 248.483.3131 •~.,. 
	For example, it states that Congresswoman Tlaib "decided to run for John Conner's seat." She sought the seat formerly represented by longtime Congressman John Conyers. 
	1 


	GOoi5MAJ\lAcKERr.c. __________________ _ 
	GOoi5MAJ\lAcKERr.c. __________________ _ 
	by her driver's license (copy attached)and every form she has filed with the state election authorities and the FEC. See, e.g., FEC Form 2; sample nominating petition sheet (attached). The complaint has provided no proof otherwise. 
	2 

	Second, even if she lived outside the district -and she does not -under the Constitution, she need only be a resident of Michigan to serve in Congress from Michigan -residency in the district is not required. See U.S. Const. Art. I, § 2. Thus even if the allegation was true, and it isn't, it doesn't make out a legal violation. 
	Finally, of course, the FEC does not even have jurisdiction over such allegations because they do not involve the FECA. 
	3 

	111. Salary 
	As reported to the FEC, Congresswoman Tlaib received a total salary from the campaign of $45,500 in 2018 as permitted by 11 CFR § 113.1 (g)(1 )(i)(I). The complaint does not dispute the receipt of a salary or the amount, both of which were lawful. It alleges only that the timing of two salary payments was improper, $2,000 on November 16, 2018 and $15,500 on December 1, 2018. 
	The complaint is wrong. All salary payments were for the covered period prior to the November 6, 2018 general election and their timing did not violate the FECA or its regulations. 
	Figure
	In 2018, the Congresswoman was a first-time federal candidate and the single mother of two boys. Before running for Congress, the Congresswoman supported her family on her own as a full-time employee at the Sugar Law Center for Economic & Social Justice ("Sugar Law Center") and as the recipient of a community organizing fellowship. She quickly realized that continued, full-time employment was inconsistent with the conduct of a successful campaign. Accordingly, Congresswoman Tlaib terminated her organizing f
	FEC regulations permit campaigns to pay a salary to candidates who have forgone outside employment to focus on their campaigns. See 11 C.F.R. §113.1 (g)(1 )(i)(I). This rule was promulgated in response to observations that "persons of average means need 
	2 
	In Michigan when a driver changes residence, the State issues a sticker for the back ofthe license which has the new address and effective date. As evidenced by the sticker on the back of Tlaib's license, she moved to the Delaware Street address effective January 30, 2018 and has lived there ever since. 
	2 

	Although not clear, the complaint apparently raises some issues about her residency in 2008 and 2010 when she served in state elected office. These allegations are false and are also beyond the FEC's jurisdiction in any event. 
	3 


	GOOiSMA1(fAcKERr.c,__________________ _ 
	GOOiSMA1(fAcKERr.c,__________________ _ 
	a salary in order to pay expenses while running for office." See 67 Fed. Reg.76,962, 76,972 (Dec. 13, 2002). Initially, Congresswoman Tlaib did not seek to avail herself of this allowance. However, she had not anticipated how quickly family expenses would mount upon drastically reducing her income. On April 4, the Congresswoman emailed her campaign manager Andrew Goddeeris and consultant Steve Tobocman confessing that she was struggling financially and that between rent and mortgage, she was sinking. Severa
	Mr. Goddeeris informed Congresswoman Tlaib that under campaign finance regulations, she was allowed to receive about $7,900 per month in salary from the campaign committee, but warned that she might face baseless political retribution for allegedly using her campaign funds to enrich herself. On the other hand, Mr. Goddeeris reasoned, if Congresswoman Tlaib dedicated large portion of each day to outside employment, it would significantly impact campaign activities. 
	Shortly thereafter the campaign decided to pay the Congresswoman a salary, although it was understood that the salary would fall well below the maximum amount permitted and would be paid according to the availability of resources. Thus the campaign paid Congresswoman Tlaib a salary, but not the full amount permitted. As public FEC records show, the campaign made a payment of $2,000 on November 16, 2018 -that was part of her pre-election salary. The campaign also made a single final payment to the Congresswo
	B. Legal Analysis 
	1. Congresswoman Tlaib's salary was well below the maximum allowed. 
	The Committee properly calculated the maximum salary Congresswoman Tlaib could receive under 11 CFR 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I). As reported to the U.S. House, her 2017 earned income was $129,357 which was less than the $174,000 annual salary of a U.S. Representative. The total amount paid to Tlaib in 2018, $45,500, was well below the pro rata maximum allowed. See id. 
	3 

	GOOoMAtTAcKERr.c.__________________ _ 
	GOOoMAtTAcKERr.c.__________________ _ 
	2. Making a candidate salary payment after the general election for the preelection period was legal. 
	-

	Analysis begins with the text of the governing regulation: 
	If the candidate wins the primary election, his or her principal campaign committee may pay him or her a salary from campaign funds through the date of the general election .... 
	11 CFR 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I) (emphasis added). This language does not expressly require payment of the salary by the date of the general election or the regulation would have so stated (e.g., "salary payment shall be made on or before the date of general election"). Instead, the date of the general election is simply the end of the term or period of employment because it is the end of the campaign. It is not a deadline for a payment.A candidate can be paid after the election for salary accrued before the electi
	4 

	The FEC has interpreted the regulation consistent with this reading. 
	In MUR 7068 (Mowrer for Iowa) the FEC addressed the situation in which a candidate received 1) a post-election salary payment for a portion of the pre-election covered period, and 2) a post-election salary payment for a post-election time period. The General Counsel's Legal Analysis indicated that the "controlling factor" was the period covered by the salary. Thus, the post-election salary payment for the period before the general election was permissible while payment for any period after the election was 
	The same principle applies here -the November 16, 2018 salary payment of $2,000 was for the covered period prior to the general election. The final December 1, 2018 payment of $15,500 was also for the covered pre-election period, representing some of the salary Tlaib was owed but not paid due to the campaign's lack of resources prior to the general election.
	5 

	This situation is not remotely like the circumstances in MUR 5787 (Kalyn Free) where months after a candidate lost an election, post-election salary payments were reported for the first time, and the candidate later claimed that there had been a prior agreement for a salary entirely deferred until the end ofthe campaign. See First General Counsel's Report at 2, 4-5, 7-8. Here, the public has been fully apprised ofthe salary payments in FEC reports, the entire salary was not deferred, and the post-election p
	5 

	4 
	The FEC's Explanation and Justification for I I CFR I 13.l(g)(l)(i)(I) sheds no light on the instant question but certainly does not prohibit post-election payment of a salary obligation incurred pre-election as here. 
	4 


	·GOoiSMA1,lAcKERr.c. __________________ _ 
	·GOoiSMA1,lAcKERr.c. __________________ _ 
	This analysis and result are also consistent with the FEC's regulatory treatment of unpaid campaign employees. In 11 CFR §116.6 the FEC has long recognized (the regulation was adopted in 1990) that cash flow issues are common in campaigns resulting in delayed payment to employees of their agreed upon and earned salaries.
	6 

	That regulation provides political committees with options to handle that situation. Allowing the Committee to fulfill its agreed upon salary obligation to Tlaib after the election is consistent with 11 CFR 116.6. 
	The salary payments were proper and this allegation is baseless. 
	IV. Leadership in Government Fellowship 
	The complaint finally alleges that Tlaib "refuse[d] to disclose who the organization was that was paying" her the Fellowship in 2017. This is not only false -her financial disclosure form filed with the U.S. House made all the necessary disclosures and the U.S. House has asked for nothing further -but this issue is also not within the jurisdiction of the FEC. 
	V. Conclusion For all these reasons this frivolous complaint should be dismissed. 
	Mark Brewer 
	cc: Hon. Rashida Tlaib Andrew Goddeeris Soh Suzuki 
	The Explanation and Justification for this regulation is replete with references to campaign cash flow problems as the source of this regulation. See 55 Fed. Reg. at 26,383 (I990). 
	6 
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	31 I. INTRODUCTION 
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	Sheila A. Oxsher 
	Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Sonya McGrady in her official capacity as treasurerRashida Tlaib 
	1 

	52 U.S.C. § 30114(a)(1) 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b)(1) 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b)(2) 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g) 11 C.F.R. § 116.6 
	FEC Disclosure Reports 
	Figure
	32 
	32 
	32 
	The Complaint alleges that Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Sonya McGrady in her 

	33 
	33 
	official capacity as treasurer (“Committee”) and Rashida Tlaib (collectively, “Respondents”) 

	34 
	34 
	violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”), and Commission 

	35 
	35 
	regulations by converting campaign funds to personal use by making two candidate salary 

	TR
	1 Soh Suzuki was treasurer at the time of the activity in this matter.  Rashida Tlaib for Congress named Sonya McGrady as its new treasurer on July 15, 2019. See Rashida Tlaib for Congress Amended Statement of Organization (July 15, 2019). 


	MUR 7579 (Rashida Tlaib for Congress, et al.) First General Counsel’s Report Page 2 of 15 
	1 payments to Tlaib after the date of the general election.  For the reasons set forth below, we 2 recommend the Commission find reason to believe Respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b) 3 and 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I) by converting campaign funds to personal use and enter into 4 pre-probable cause conciliation with Respondents.  5 II. FACTUAL BACKGROUND 6 Rashida Tlaib was a first-time candidate in Michigan’s 13th Congressional District in 7 2018.  During the first four months of 2018 she worked full
	2
	3
	4 
	5

	10 election campaign and carrying on through the general election campaign, the Committee paid 11 Tlaib a bi-weekly salary of $2,000.  The Complaint alleges, however, that salary payments 12 totaling $17,000, continued to be disbursed to Tlaib even after the November 6, 2018, general 13 election in violation of the Act and Commission regulations.The Complaint’s allegations 14 overlap with those in a matter referred from the Office of Congressional Ethics (“OCE”) to the 
	6 

	15 
	The Complaint also alleges Tlaib violated the law by running in a Congressional district in which she did not live and refusing to disclose income and the source thereof on her financial disclosure forms for the U.S. House of Representatives upon her election.  The Commission lacks jurisdiction to consider these allegations. 
	2 

	See Rashida Tlaib for Congress Resp. at 2 (May 13, 2019) (“Tlaib Resp.”).  Tlaib won the Democratic primary election on August 7, 2018, and won the general election on November 6, 2018. See FEC, FEDERAL ELECTIONS 2018: ELECTION RESULTS FOR THE U.S. SENATE AND THE U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES (Oct. 2019), 
	3 
	https://www.fec.gov/resources/cms-content/documents/federalelections2018.pdf. 

	Compl. at 1-2 (Mar. 15, 2019).  The Complaint references the Washington Free Beacon as the source of the allegations, but does not cite a specific article. See id. at 1; Joe Schoffstall, Rashida Tlaib Paid Herself $45,500 from Campaign Funds, WASH. FREE BEACON (Mar. 1, 2019) (“WFB Article”), . 
	6 
	/
	https://freebeacon.com/politics/rashida-tlaib-paid-herself-45500-from-campaign-funds


	MUR 7579 (Rashida Tlaib for Congress, et al.) First General Counsel’s Report Page 3 of 15 
	1 U.S. House of Representatives Committee on Ethics (“House Ethics Committee”).  An OCE 
	2 Report containing the results of an investigation and Tlaib’s response thereto was made public on 
	3 November 14, 2019.
	7 

	4 Tlaib filed her Statement of Candidacy and the Committee filed its Statement of 
	5 Organization with the Commission on February 5, 2018.  The filing deadline for access to the 
	6 primary election ballot in Michigan was April 24, 2018.  The Committee made its first salary 
	8

	7 payment to Tlaib on May 7, 2018, and through December 1, 2018, the Committee disbursed a 
	9

	8 total of $45,500 in salary payments to Tlaib, made on the dates and in the amounts depicted in 
	9 the chart below:
	10 

	See Office of Cong. Ethics, Findings of Fact and Citations to Law and Exhibits, Review No. 19-4114 (Aug. 9, 2019) (“OCE Report” and “OCE Report Ex.”) at 1 & ¶ 10, ; ; Letter from Karl 
	7 
	/ congressionalethics house.gov/files/documents/OCE%20Review%20No.%2019-4114 Referral.pdf
	https://oce.house.gov/sites

	https://oce house.gov/sites/congressionalethics house.gov/files/documents/Referral%20Exhibits.pdf
	https://oce house.gov/sites/congressionalethics house.gov/files/documents/Referral%20Exhibits.pdf


	J. Sandstrom, Counsel to Rep. Tlaib, to Theodore E. Deutch, Chairman, U.S. House of Representatives Committee on Ethics (Aug. 29, 2019) (“Tlaib House Ethics Resp.”), . On August 9, 2019, OCE found there is “substantial reason to believe that Rep. Tlaib converted campaign funds from Rashida Tlaib for Congress to personal use or Rep. Tlaib’s campaign committee expended funds that were not attributable to bona find campaign or political purposes” and voted to refer the matter to the House Ethics Committee. OCE
	/ ethics.house.gov/files/20190829%20COE%20Response%20Letter%20%28Review%20No.%2019-4114%29.pdf
	https://ethics.house.gov/sites

	representative-17
	https://ethics.house.gov/press-release/statement-chairman-and-ranking-member-committee-ethics-regarding
	-


	See Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2018 July Quarterly Report at 298-99 (July 15, 2018); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2018 12-Day Pre-Primary Report at 113 (July 26, 2018); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, Amended 2018 October Quarterly Report at 291-92 (Nov. 26, 2018); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2018 12-Day Pre-General Report at 87-88 (Oct. 25, 2018); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2018 30-Day Post-General Report at 90 (Dec. 5, 2018); Rashida Tlaib for Congress, 2018 Year-End Report at 32 (Jan. 22, 2019); see also Tl
	10 

	MUR 7579 (Rashida Tlaib for Congress, et al.) First General Counsel’s Report Page 4 of 15 
	Table
	TR
	Salary Payments to Tlaib 

	Payment Date 
	Payment Date 
	Pay Period11 
	Amount 

	May 7, 2018 
	May 7, 2018 
	N/A12 
	$2,000 

	May 16, 2018 
	May 16, 2018 
	April 16-30, 2018 
	$2,000 

	June 1, 2018 
	June 1, 2018 
	May 1-15, 2018 
	$2,000 

	June 16, 2018 
	June 16, 2018 
	May 16-31, 2018 
	$2,000 

	July 1, 2018 
	July 1, 2018 
	June 1-15, 2018 
	$2,000 

	July 16, 2018 
	July 16, 2018 
	June 16-30, 2018 
	$2,000 

	August 1, 2018 
	August 1, 2018 
	July 1-15, 2018 
	$2,000 

	August 11, 2018 
	August 11, 2018 
	July 16-August 7, 2018 
	$3,000 

	August 29, 2018 
	August 29, 2018 
	August 8-31, 2018 
	$3,000 

	September 16, 2018 
	September 16, 2018 
	September 1-15, 2018 
	$2,000 

	October 1, 2018 
	October 1, 2018 
	September 16-30, 2018 
	$2,000 

	October 16, 2018 
	October 16, 2018 
	October 1-15, 2018 
	$2,000 

	November 1, 2018 
	November 1, 2018 
	October 16-31, 2018 
	$2,000 

	November 16, 2018 
	November 16, 2018 
	November 1-15, 2018 
	$2,000 

	December 1, 2018 
	December 1, 2018 
	November 16-December 31, 2018 
	$15,500 


	1 The Complaint alleges that two salary payments violated the Act and Commission regulations: 2 $2,000 on November 16, 2018, and $15,500 on December 1, 2018.  According to the 3 Complaint, these payments were illegally made after Tlaib won the general election on 
	13

	The designated pay periods derive from documents and other evidence provided by Rep. Tlaib to OCE during its investigation.  Specifically, Rep. Tlaib produced several spreadsheets documenting salary payments to Tlaib and campaign staffers, including notations of the pay periods which each salary payment covered. See OCE Report Ex. 9 at 19-4114_0029-35; OCE Report Ex. 12 at 19-4114_0056. Rep. Tlaib also produced photocopies of the checks she received for her salary payments, which contain contemporaneous mem
	11 

	An office salaries spreadsheet Tlaib provided to OCE does not indicate a pay period for this payment as it does for other salary payments to Tlaib and campaign staffers. See OCE Report Ex. 9 at 19-4114_0030. Furthermore, the memo line of the Committee check made payable to Tlaib dated May 7, 2018, appears blank in comparison to the other salary payment checks to Tlaib which indicate the relevant pay period in the memo line.  See OCE Report Ex. 10 at19-4114_0037. 
	12 

	Compl. at 1. 
	13 

	MUR 7579 (Rashida Tlaib for Congress, et al.) First General Counsel’s Report Page 5 of 15 
	1   Respondents contend that “[a]ll salary 2 payments were for the covered period prior to the November 6, 2018 general election,” and 3   They argue that, under their 4 interpretation, Commission regulations permit payment of salary covering time through the date 5 of the general election but do not require that payment to be made by the date of the general 6   Respondents further assert that the total salary paid to Tlaib in 2018 ($45,500) did not 7 exceed the maximum amount allowed because it was less th
	November 6, 2018, and was no longer a candidate.
	14
	therefore do not violate the Act or Commission regulations.
	15
	election.
	16
	($129,357) and less than the annual salary of a U.S. Representative ($174,000).
	17 

	10 Under the Act, a contribution accepted by a candidate may be used by the candidate for 11 otherwise authorized expenditures in connection with the campaign for federal office of the 12   However, a contribution shall not be converted by any person to personal use.13 “Personal use” means any use of funds in a campaign account of a present or former candidate to 14 fulfill a commitment, obligation, or expense of any person that would exist irrespective of the 15 
	candidate.
	18
	19 
	candidate’s campaign or duties as a federal officeholder.
	20 

	14 
	14 
	14 
	Id. 

	15 
	15 
	Tlaib Resp. at 2-5. 

	16 
	16 
	Id. 

	17 
	17 
	Id. at 3. 

	18 
	18 
	52 U.S.C. § 30114(a)(1). 

	19 
	19 
	Id. § 30114(b)(1). 

	20 
	20 
	Id. § 30114(b)(2); 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g). 
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	1 The Act and Commission regulations enumerate certain expenses that are considered per 2 se “personal use” and thus prohibited, including salary payments to a candidate that do not meet 3 A candidate’s principal campaign committee may pay a salary to the 4 candidate that will not constitute personal use of campaign funds so long as it does not exceed 5 the lesser of the minimum salary paid to a Federal officeholder holding the Federal office that the 6 candidate seeks or the earned income that the candidat
	specified criteria.
	21 
	becoming a candidate.
	22 
	officeholder holding the seat sought by the candidate.
	23

	10 salary to a candidate before the filing deadline for access to the primary election ballot for the 11 Federal office that the candidate seeks, as determined by state law.  During the time period in 12 which a principal campaign committee may pay a salary to a candidate, such payment must be 13   If the candidate wins the primary election, his or her principal 14 campaign committee may pay him or her a salary from campaign funds through the date of the 
	24
	computed on a pro-rata basis.
	25

	21 
	21 
	21 
	52 U.S.C. § 30114(b)(2); 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I). 

	22 
	22 
	11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I). 

	23 
	23 
	Id. Upon request of the Commission, the candidate must provide evidence of earned income. Id. 

	24 
	24 
	Id. 

	25 
	25 
	Id. This is intended to prevent a candidate’s principal campaign committee from paying the candidate the 

	entire minimum annual salary for the Federal office sought by the candidate, unless he or she is a candidate, as 
	entire minimum annual salary for the Federal office sought by the candidate, unless he or she is a candidate, as 

	defined by 11 C.F.R. § 100.3(a), for at least one year. See Disclaimers, Fraudulent Solicitation, Civil Penalties, and 
	defined by 11 C.F.R. § 100.3(a), for at least one year. See Disclaimers, Fraudulent Solicitation, Civil Penalties, and 

	Personal Use of Campaign Funds; 67 Fed. Reg. 76,962, 76,972 (Dec. 13, 2002) (“Personal Use E&J”). 
	Personal Use of Campaign Funds; 67 Fed. Reg. 76,962, 76,972 (Dec. 13, 2002) (“Personal Use E&J”). 
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	1 
	1 
	MUR 7579 (Rashida Tlaib for Congress, et al.) First General Counsel’s Report Page 7 of 15 general election.26  The payment of salary to candidates that do not meet these conditions is 

	2 
	2 
	considered per se personal use.27 

	3 
	3 
	Finally, if a political committee does not pay an employee for services rendered to the 

	4 
	4 
	committee in accordance with a formal or informal agreement to do so, the unpaid amount either 

	5 
	5 
	may be treated as a debt owed by the committee to the employee or the employee agrees to be 

	6 
	6 
	considered a volunteer.28
	  If the unpaid amount is treated as a debt, the committee shall continue 

	7 
	7 
	to report the debt in accordance with 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.3 and 104.11.29 

	8 
	8 
	A. 
	November 16, 2018, Salary Payment 

	9 
	9 
	The Committee made a $2,000 salary payment to Tlaib on November 16, 2018, that 

	10 
	10 
	occurred after the November 6 general election and appears to compensate the candidate for time 

	11 
	11 
	both before and after that date. According to a salaries spreadsheet Respondents provided to 

	12 
	12 
	OCE (“Office Salaries Spreadsheet”) and the memo line of the Committee check made payable 

	13 
	13 
	to Tlaib dated November 16, 2018, the payment covered the period from November 1 to 

	14 
	14 
	November 15, 2018.30
	  Respondents assert without explanation that the payment covered a 

	15 
	15 
	“period prior to the general election.”31 
	In response to the OCE Report, Tlaib further contends 

	16 
	16 
	that the Office Salaries Spreadsheet was “standardized to reflect payments to every individual on 

	TR
	26 
	Id. 

	TR
	27 
	Id.; see also Personal Use E&J at 76,972. 

	TR
	28 11 C.F.R. § 116.6(a). 29 11 C.F.R. § 116.6(c). 30 OCE Report Ex. 9 at 19-4114_0034 (listing “11/1 – 11/15” in the “Notes” column); OCE Report Ex. 10 at 19-4114_0050 (listing “Salary (11/1 – 11/15)” in the memo field). 31 Tlaib Resp. at 4; see also Tlaib House Ethics Resp. at 6 (“[A] payment on November 16, 2018[] cover[ed] the period through the November 6 general election . . ..”). 
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	1 the Campaign’s payroll,” and does “not say one way or the other when the underlying work was 2 actually performed.”  However, Respondents do not rebut the contemporaneous documentation 3 of the memo line of the Committee check.  In light of this information, it is reasonable to 4 conclude that a portion of the November 16, 2018, payment impermissibly compensated Tlaib 5 for time after the general election on November 6, 2018, and therefore that portion constituted 6 personal use of campaign funds. 7 The C
	32
	and after the general election.
	33

	10 2014, salary payment was permissible, i.e., that compensated the candidate for the period of 11 November 1 through November 4, the day of the general election, and that the post-election 12 13 Accordingly, in the instant matter the portion of the November 16 payment covering 14 November 1 through November 6 was permissible and equals $800 ($2,000  15 days = $133.34 15 per day; $133.34 x 6 days = $800).  Therefore, the portion of the November 16 payment that 16 covered November 7 through November 15 equal
	portion constituted a violation of the Act’s personal use prohibition.
	34 

	Figure
	Tlaib House Ethics Resp. at 6. 
	32 

	Factual & Legal Analysis at 6 (“F&LA”), MUR 7068 (Mowrer for Iowa, et al.). In MUR 7068, the committee and candidate acknowledged that the salary payments compensated the candidate for the prior two week to 15-day pay period and were typically made a few days after the end of each period. See id. at 6 n.22 (citing Mowrer Response to the Complaint at 2, MUR 7068 (July 18, 2016)). 
	33 

	See id. at 6-7; Conciliation Agreement ¶ IV.7, MUR 7068 (Mowrer for Iowa, et al.). 
	34 

	Figure
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	1 
	1 
	B. 
	December 1, 2018, Salary Payment 

	2 
	2 
	The Committee made a $15,500 salary payment to Tlaib on December 1, 2018, after the 

	3 
	3 
	general election.  According to Respondents’ Office Salaries Spreadsheet, the payment covered 

	4 
	4 
	the period from November 16 through December 31, 2018.36
	  According to another Committee 

	5 
	5 
	spreadsheet provided to OCE with projected amounts to be paid on December 1, 2018 

	6 
	6 
	(“December Payments Spreadsheet”), and the memo line of the Committee check made payable 

	7 
	7 
	to Tlaib dated December 1, 2018, the payment covered the period from November 16 to 

	8 
	8 
	December 31, 2018, and an “adjustment.”37 
	Specifically, the December Payments Spreadsheet 

	9 
	9 
	characterizes the $15,500 payment to Tlaib as the summation of:  (i) $2,000 for the standard pay 

	10 
	10 
	period from November 16 through November 30, 2018; (ii) a $6,000 salary advance for the 

	11 
	11 
	month of December 2018; and (iii) $7,500 in “adjustments to be made for the previous 

	12 
	12 
	payments.”38
	  The $7,500 adjustment is described as an “[a]ddition of $2000/mo[nth] for 3.75 

	13 
	13 
	mo[nths].”39 

	14 
	14 
	Respondents assert in their response to the Complaint that the December 1, 2018, 

	15 
	15 
	payment covered a “period prior to the general election,” and describe the payment as 

	16 
	16 
	permissibly filling the gap between the amount Commission regulations permitted in salary 

	17 
	17 
	payments and what the Committee actually paid her in salary up until the election.40 

	TR
	36 OCE Report Ex. 9 at 19-4114_0035 (listing “11/16 – 12/31” in the “Notes” column). 37 See OCE Report Ex. 12 at 10-4114_0055-56 (containing the December Payments Spreadsheet); OCE Report Ex. 10 at 19-4114_0051 (noting “11/16 – 12/31 + Adjustment” in the memo field). 38 See OCE Report Ex. 12 at 19-4114_0056. 39 See id. 

	TR
	40 See Tlaib Resp. at 3-4 (“The campaign made th[e December payment] in order to make up some – though not all – of the difference between what [Tlaib] has been permitted to receive for services provided through Election Day, November 6, 2018, and what the campaign had actually paid her for those same services.”). 
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	1 Respondents explain that the Committee lacked sufficient resources to make the maximum salary 
	2 payments prior to the election and indicate that the lump-sum payment satisfied a prior 
	3 agreement to retroactively adjust Tlaib’s salary upwards toward the permissible maximum 
	4   With regard to the purported deferred compensation agreement, no information was 
	amount.
	41

	5 provided on the dates of the agreement, specific amounts due, or whether the agreement was ever 
	6 reduced to writing. 
	7 Respondents’ arguments are not persuasive.  Even if the Committee’s aggregate salary 
	8 payments to Tlaib fall within the overall permissible amount, none of that amount may be paid 
	42

	9   According to Respondents’ own information, 
	for a period after she ceased to be a candidate.
	43

	10 $8,000 of the $15,500 paid to Tlaib on December 1, 2018, compensated her for the time period 
	Id. at 4-5 (stating the lump-sum payment represented “some of the salary Tlaib was owed but not paid due to the campaign’s lack of resources prior to the general election” and that the Committee was paying “its agreed upon salary obligation to Tlaib after the election”); see also Tlaib House Ethics Resp. at 3 (“The Campaign included Representative Tlaib in those [post-election day] disbursements to make up some of the difference between what she was entitled to receive for her service through Election Day, 
	41 

	The Committee’s salary payments to Tlaib, combined with her other earned income in 2018, do not appear to exceed the permitted maximum aggregate for the year.  According to Tlaib and her House Financial Disclosure Report, she earned $129,357 in 2017. See Tlaib Resp. at 3; Rashida Tlaib, Amendment Report 2 (Dec. 7, 2018), .  Because her earned income was less than the $174,000 annual salary of a freshman U.S. Representative, the maximum aggregate for permissible salary payments to Tlaib was $129,357. See 11 
	42 
	disc/financial-pdfs/2018/10024977.pdf
	http://clerk house.gov/public 

	  In 2018, Tlaib earned $33,955.30 in salary from the 
	disc/financialpdfs/2018/10026889.pdf
	http://clerk.house.gov/public 
	-

	Committee, was $79,455.30 and within the permissible aggregate maximum. 

	See 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I). 
	43 
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	1 
	1 
	between November 16 and December 31, 2018, after the general election and therefore is an 

	2 
	2 
	impermissible conversion of campaign funds to personal use.   

	3 
	3 
	As for the $7,500 “adjustment” to “previous [salary] payments,” we similarly conclude 

	4 
	4 
	that it is not permitted under the Commission’s personal use regulation.  First, such a practice 

	5 
	5 
	would undermine the candidate salary exception to the personal use prohibition.  The 

	6 
	6 
	Commission promulgated the candidate salary provision to allow campaign funds to 

	7 
	7 
	“compensate candidates for lost income that is forgone due to becoming a candidate.”44 But in 

	8 
	8 
	making the decision to do so, the Commission was “satisfied that, because all candidate . . . 

	9 
	9 
	salaries will be fully disclosed to the public, those who contribute to the campaign and who 

	10 
	10 
	support the candidate will be able to voice their approval, or disapproval, of this use of campaign 

	11 
	11 
	funds.”45 Such disclosure is thwarted where salary payments are made retroactively after the 

	12 
	12 
	general election.46  Although Respondents assert that “the public has been fully apprised of 

	13 
	13 
	[Tlaib’s] salary payments in FEC reports,”47 the salary payments disclosed before the general 

	14 
	14 
	election provided no indication that Tlaib’s semi-monthly salary payments would be later 

	15 
	15 
	supplemented by an adjustment of $7,500 that amounted to an additional $2,000 per month (a 

	16 
	16 
	50% increase) for nearly four months of the regularly reported salary payments.  Respondents 

	17 
	17 
	state that the December 1, 2018, payment to Tlaib “represent[ed] some of the salary Tlaib was 

	TR
	44 
	Personal Use E&J at 76,972. 

	TR
	45 
	See id. at 76,972-73. 

	TR
	46 Respondents themselves recognize the potential public perception of candidates receiving salaries. See Tlaib Resp. at 3 (“[Rashida Tlaib for Congress campaign manager Andrew] Goddeeris informed [then-candidate] Tlaib that under campaign finance regulations, she was allowed to receive about $7,900 per month in salary from the campaign committee, but warned that she might face baseless political retribution for allegedly using her campaign funds to enrich herself.”). 

	TR
	47 Id. at 4 n.5; see also OCE Report at 5 n.24 (“Representative Tlaib and the Campaign were forthright about the candidate salary payments from the beginning, disclosing them on FEC reports during the campaign.”). 


	MUR 7579 (Rashida Tlaib for Congress, et al.) First General Counsel’s Report Page 12 of 15 
	1 owed but not paid due to the campaign’s lack of resources prior to the general election[,]” and 
	2 that “[a]llowing the Committee to fulfill its agreed upon salary obligation to Tlaib after the 
	3 election is consistent with 11 C.F.R. 116.6.”  However, even if they could enter into a deferred 
	48

	4 compensation agreement with the candidate, Respondents have not provided any documentation 
	5 of such an agreement.  Moreover, the Committee did not report any deferred salary obligation as 
	6   Finally, although the Respondents assert, 
	a debt owed to Tlaib on any disclosure reports.
	49

	7 without elaboration, that their conduct is consistent with 11 C.F.R. § 116.6, that regulation 
	8 applies to salary payments owed to committee employees rather than candidates and that 
	9 provision too requires the committees to disclose unpaid amounts treated as debts, something 
	10 that did not happen here.
	50 

	11 Therefore, Respondents converted campaign funds to personal use when the Committee 
	12 paid Tlaib $15,500 in salary on December 1, 2018, either as compensation for the period after the 
	Tlaib Resp. at 4-5. 
	48 

	See 52 U.S.C. § 30104(b)(8) and 11 C.F.R. §§ 104.3(d) and 104.11. Section 116.6 of the Commission’s regulations cited by Respondents applies to salary payments owed to committee employees rather than candidates, but that provision too requires the committees to disclose unpaid amounts treated as debts. See 11 C.F.R. § 116.6(c); Debts Owed by Candidates and Political Committees, Final Rule and Explanation and Justification, 55 Fed. Reg. 26,378, 26,383 (June 27, 1990). 
	49 

	In a previous matter, MUR 5787 (Kalyn Free for Congress), a candidate committee made lump-sum salary payments to a candidate two months after the candidate lost the primary election and stated it had an oral agreement with the candidate to defer the salary amount until the end of her campaign. See F&LA at 6, MUR 5787. The Commission found reason to believe those respondents violated the personal use prohibition, in part because they failed to provide any evidence, such as affidavits, to substantiate the all
	50 
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	1 November 6, 2018, general election when she was no longer a candidate,or as a retroactive 
	51 

	2 adjustment to increase prior salary payments. 
	3 C. Conclusion 
	4 Based on the foregoing analysis, we recommend the Commission find reason to believe 
	5 that Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Sonya McGrady in her official capacity as treasurer and 
	6 Rashida Tlaib violated 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b) and 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I) by converting 
	7 $16,700 of campaign funds to personal use in connection with salary payments to the 
	8 
	candidate.
	52 


	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
	Figure
	See MUR 7068 (Mowrer for Iowa, et al.) F&LA at 6 (the Commission found a December 5, 2014, salary payment covering November 16 through November 30, 2014 to be entirely impermissible because it compensated the candidate from campaign funds for a period after the date of the general election). 
	51 

	The first two salary payments to Tlaib, on May 7 and May 16, 2018, after the primary ballot filing deadline in Michigan on April 24, 2018, but appearing to correspond to pay periods before the filing deadline, are not addressed in the Complaint. See supra at 4 & nn.9-10; 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I) (the committee shall not pay salary to a candidate before the filing deadline for access to the primary election ballot for the federal office that the candidate seeks, as determined by state law).  In view of 
	52 
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	1 2 3 4 5 6 
	7 V. RECOMMENDATIONS 
	8 1. Find reason to believe that Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Sonya McGrady in her 
	9 official capacity as treasurer violated 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b) and 11 C.F.R. 10 § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I) by converting campaign funds to personal use in connection with 11 salary payments to the candidate; 12 
	13 
	13 
	13 
	2. Find reason to believe that Rashida Tlaib violated 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b) and 14 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I) by converting campaign funds to personal use in 15 connection with salary payments to the candidate; 16 

	17 
	17 
	3. Enter into conciliation with Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Sonya McGrady in her 18 official capacity as treasurer and Rashida Tlaib prior to a finding of probable cause to 19 believe; 20 

	21 
	21 
	4. Approve the attached Factual and Legal Analysis; 22 

	23 
	23 
	5. Approve the attached proposed conciliation agreement; and 24 
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	Figure
	1 TO: The Commission 
	2 FROM: Lisa Stevenson 3 Acting General Counsel 4 Charles Kitcher 
	5 Acting Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 
	6 BY: Peter G. Blumberg 7 Acting Deputy Associate General Counsel for Enforcement 8 Mark Allen 
	9 Assistant General Counsel 
	10 Thaddeus H. Ewald 11 Attorney 12 DATE: March 29, 2021 13 SUBJECT: MUR 7579 (Rashida Tlaib for Congress, et al.) 
	14 Supplement to First General Counsel’s Report 
	15 I. INTRODUCTION 
	16 The Office of General Counsel (“OGC”) circulated a First General Counsel’s Report 17 (“FGCR”) in this matter to the Commission dated April 1, 2020, recommending that the 18 Commission find reason to believe that Rashida Tlaib for Congress and its treasurer in their 19 official capacity (the “Committee”) and Rashida Tlaib (collectively, the “Respondents”) violated 20 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b) and 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I) by converting $16,700 of campaign funds 21 to personal use in connection with salary 
	23 The allegations in this matter overlap with those of a referral by the Office of 24 Congressional Ethics (“OCE”) to the U.S. House of Representatives Committee on Ethics 25 (“HEC”).  The FGCR incorporated facts detailed in OCE’s Report into its analysis, but HEC’s 26 investigation of the OCE referral was still pending when the FGCR circulated.  HEC concluded 
	1
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	1 its investigation and adopted an accompanying report (“HEC Report”) on July 23, 2020, and 2 released the HEC Report publicly on August 7, 2020.  The HEC Report provides new 3 information but is consistent with the facts and analysis contained in the FGCR.  Although the 4 HEC Report reached a different conclusion as to a portion of the salary payments at issue, it did 5 so in large part based in recognition that the Commission “has not specifically addressed whether 6 a ‘back pay’ or ‘deferred compensation
	2
	3 

	10 also recommend the Commission approve the revised Factual and Legal Analysis and proposed 11 Conciliation Agreement attached hereto. 
	12 II. POST-GENERAL ELECTION SALARY PAYMENTS 
	13 The FGCR concluded that the Respondents converted $16,700 of the Committee’s 14 campaign funds to Tlaib’s personal use.   The $16,700 amount is the sum of (1) a $1,200 pro 15 rata portion of the $2,000 salary payment to Tlaib made on November 16, 2018, and (2) the 16 entirety of the $15,500 salary payment made on December 1, 2018.
	4
	5 

	17 A. November 16, 2018, Salary Payment 
	18 The FGCR reasoned that the $2,000 salary payment on November 16, 2018, covered the 19 two-week pay period of November 1 through November 15 and calculated that the Committee 20 permissibly compensated Tlaib $800 for the pre-election period of November 1 through 21 November 6, but impermissibly compensated her $1,200 for the post-election period of 22 November 7 through November 15.  The HEC Report reached an identical conclusion.
	6
	7 

	2 
	2 
	2 
	COMM. ON ETHICS, IN THE MATTER OF ALLEGATIONS RELATING TO REPRESENTATIVE RASHIDA TLAIB, H.R. 

	REP. NO. 116-473 (2020) (“HEC Report”), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CRPT-116hrpt473/pdf/CRPT
	REP. NO. 116-473 (2020) (“HEC Report”), https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/CRPT-116hrpt473/pdf/CRPT
	-


	116hrpt473.pdf. 
	116hrpt473.pdf. 

	3 
	3 
	See HEC Report at 20. 

	4 
	4 
	FGCR at 13. 

	5 
	5 
	Id. at 7-13. 

	6 
	6 
	Id. at 7-8. 

	7 
	7 
	HEC Report at 16-17. Both the FGCR and the HEC Report determined the $2,000 salary payment 

	corresponded to a standard bi-monthly pay period for the first half of the month preceding the payment based on an 
	corresponded to a standard bi-monthly pay period for the first half of the month preceding the payment based on an 

	office salaries spreadsheet the Respondents provided to OCE during its investigation. See id. (citing OCE Report 
	office salaries spreadsheet the Respondents provided to OCE during its investigation. See id. (citing OCE Report 

	Ex. 9); FGCR at 7-9 (same). HEC’s investigation confirmed that Tlaib was paid a monthly salary of $4,000 on the 
	Ex. 9); FGCR at 7-9 (same). HEC’s investigation confirmed that Tlaib was paid a monthly salary of $4,000 on the 

	same bi-monthly schedule as other Committee salaries were paid, with the exception of two salary payments in 
	same bi-monthly schedule as other Committee salaries were paid, with the exception of two salary payments in 

	August 2018, which corresponded to three-week pay periods. HEC Report at 7-8 & n.66. 
	August 2018, which corresponded to three-week pay periods. HEC Report at 7-8 & n.66. 
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	1 B. December 1, 2018, Salary Payment 
	2 The FGCR recommended that the Commission find the entire $15,500 salary payment on 3 December 1, 2018, to be impermissible because it appeared that $8,000 compensated Tlaib for 4 the post-election period from November 16 through December 31, 2018, and $7,500 was a 5 retroactive adjustment to Tlaib’s prior salary payments under a back pay or deferred 6 compensation agreement (“BP/DCA”).The FGCR concluded that, similar to the November 16, 7 2018, salary payment, the $8,000 portion of the December payment co
	8 
	9

	10 Commission’s personal use regulation because it would undermine the transparency rationale of 11 the candidate salary exception, the Respondents did not provide documentation of a BP/DCA, 12 
	and the Committee did not contemporaneously report the alleged adjustments as debts.
	10 

	13 The HEC Report, however, ordered Tlaib to reimburse only $9,600 from the December 1, 14   HEC reached an identical conclusion as OGC did as to $8,000 of the 15 payment, finding the Committee impermissibly compensated Tlaib $8,000 for post-election 16 periods in November and December of 2018.The HEC Report’s analysis of retroactive 17 adjustments to candidate salary diverged from the FGCR’s, and HEC ordered Tlaib to refund 18 
	2018, salary payment.
	11
	12 
	only $1,600 of the remaining $7,500 of the December 1, 2018, salary payment.
	13 

	19 HEC observed the Commission “ha[s] not specifically stated whether ‘deferred 20 compensation’ or ‘back pay’ arrangements are permissible,” but interpreted prior candidate 21 salary matters to indicate that “the FEC may find a [BP/DCA] created before a candidate ceases 
	8 
	8 
	8 
	FGCR at 9-12. 

	9 
	9 
	Id. at 10-11. According to a December salaries spreadsheet the Respondents provided to OCE during its 

	investigation, $2,000 covered the two-week pay period of November 16 through November 30 and $6,000 was an 
	investigation, $2,000 covered the two-week pay period of November 16 through November 30 and $6,000 was an 

	advance for the month of December 2018. See id. (citing OCE Report Ex. 12). 
	advance for the month of December 2018. See id. (citing OCE Report Ex. 12). 

	10 
	10 
	Id. at 11-12. 

	11 
	11 
	HEC Report at 17-20. 

	12 
	12 
	Id. at 17-19. Both the FGCR and the HEC Report relied upon the December salaries spreadsheet the 

	Respondents provided to OCE. Id. (citing OCE Report Ex. 12); see also FGCR at 9-11 (same). 
	Respondents provided to OCE. Id. (citing OCE Report Ex. 12); see also FGCR at 9-11 (same). 

	13 
	13 
	HEC Report at 17-19. Like the FGCR, HEC accepted that $7,500 was a retroactive adjustment to Tlaib’s 

	prior salary payments. See id. at 18; FGCR at 9, 11-12. HEC interpreted the $2,000 per month for 3.75 months 
	prior salary payments. See id. at 18; FGCR at 9, 11-12. HEC interpreted the $2,000 per month for 3.75 months 

	notation on the December salaries spreadsheet to correspond to the period between the August 7 primary election 
	notation on the December salaries spreadsheet to correspond to the period between the August 7 primary election 

	and November 6 general election, and calculated that $5,900 of the $7,500 amount was back pay or deferred 
	and November 6 general election, and calculated that $5,900 of the $7,500 amount was back pay or deferred 

	compensation corresponding to that period: (1) $1,500 for the post-primary August period; (2) $2,000 each for 
	compensation corresponding to that period: (1) $1,500 for the post-primary August period; (2) $2,000 each for 

	September and October; and (3) $400 pro rata for the pre-election November period. HEC Report at 18-20 & 
	September and October; and (3) $400 pro rata for the pre-election November period. HEC Report at 18-20 & 

	nn.155, 162. 
	nn.155, 162. 
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	1 to be a candidate to be consistent with the personal use regulations’ timing restrictions.”  Thus, 2 3 Despite conflicting testimony from interviewees regarding the timing, amount, affected pay 4 periods, and the individuals involved in the decision-making on the purported BP/DCA, HEC 5 nevertheless credited Tlaib’s personal testimony that she reached an informal BP/DCA with the 6 Committee after the primary election in August 2018, when she recalled discussing back pay of 7 
	14
	HEC credited the existence of an informal agreement between Tlaib and the Committee.
	15 
	an additional $1,000 per pay period.
	16 

	8 The HEC Report provides additional information that was not previously available to 
	9 OGC in its consideration of MUR 7579 but that reinforces the rationale and conclusions in the 10 FGCR.First, HEC’s confirmation that neither Tlaib’s regular salary payments nor the 11 purported BP/DCA were ever reduced to a contract or other written agreement lends support to 12 the FGCR’s conclusion that, even if retroactive adjustments were permissible, Respondents 13 failed to document the existence or terms of such an agreement here.  Further, HEC also found 14 a “notable lack of consensus” about when
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	the parties entered into the purported BP/DCA.
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	15 Second, the investigation did not yield a definitive explanation of how the Committee 16 calculated the $15,500 salary payment on December 1, 2018, and at times produced conflicting 
	HEC Report at 14-16, 20-21 (emphasis added) (citing MUR 5787 (Kalyn Free for Congress, et al.)) (arguing the Commission’s positions on retroactive adjustments to candidate salary and debt reporting requirements thereof were “not clear from publicly available records”). After initially finding reason to believe a candidate’s retroactive salary payments were impermissible because there was no evidence of an oral BP/DCA and where such was not contemporaneously reported as debt, the Conciliation Agreement in MU
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	Id. at 17-19. 
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	The new information derived from HEC’s investigation that included interviews with Tlaib and Committee 
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	HEC Report at 10-11 & nn.93, 96-97. 
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	1   Thus, these findings support the FGCR’s reliance 2 upon two campaign salary spreadsheets as the contemporaneous evidence of the time periods to 3   Finally, the investigation revealed some awareness 4 that the retroactive adjustments might be subject to Commission debt reporting requirements, 5 which supports the FGCR’s conclusion that a retroactive adjustment is not permitted, especially 6 where it was not reported as debt.
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	1. Approve recommendations 1, 2, 3, and 6 in the First General Counsel’s Report in 4 MUR 7579 dated April 1, 2020;
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	2. Approve the attached Factual and Legal Analysis; and 
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	3. Approve the attached proposed Conciliation Agreement. 
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	The attached Factual and Legal Analysis includes technical edits and revisions to the one attached to the FGCR to include reference to HEC’s conclusion of its investigation. The HEC Report requires Tlaib to refund $10,800 to the Committee within one year of the Report — by August 7, 2021 — and permits installment payments of the refund. HEC Report at 22. 
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	Find reason to believe that Rashida Tlaib violated 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b) and 11 C.F.R. § 113.1(g)(1)(i)(I) by coverting campaign funds to personal use in connection with salary payments to the candidate. 

	3. 
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	Approve the appropriate letter. 
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	In the Matter of ) 
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	CERTIFICATION 
	I, Vicktoria J. Allen, recording secreta1y for the Federal Election Commission executive 
	session on December 02, 2021, do hereby ce1iify that the Commission decided by a vote of5-1 
	to take the following actions in MUR 7579: 
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	Dismiss the allegations pursuant to Heckler v. Chaney. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Approve the Factual and Legal Analysis, as recommended in the First General Counsel's Repo1i dated April 1, 2020, subject to the edits last circulated by Chair Broussard's Office on November 29, 2021 at 2:17 p.m., with the additional revision to the total amount ofsalaiy payments on page 2 as reflected in the Office ofGeneral Counsel's email on November 29, 2021 at 4:41 p.m., and such technical and confonning edits that may be required. 

	3. 
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	Approve the appropriate letters. 
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	4. 
	Close the file. 
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	Sheila Oxsher Columbus, OH 43207 
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	CERTIFIED MAIL RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED 

	RE: MUR 7579 
	Dear Ms. Oxsher: 
	This is in reference to the complaint you filed with the Federal Election Commission on March 15, 2019.  Upon further review of the allegations contained in the complaint, information supplied by respondents, and after considering the circumstances of the matter, the Commission, on December 2, 2021, voted to dismiss the matter and closed the file.  The Factual and Legal Analysis, which more fully explains the Commission’s decision, is enclosed for your information. 
	Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.  See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 2, 2016).  
	The Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended, allows a complainant to seek judicial review of the Commission’s dismissal of this action. See 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(8). 
	If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 694-1650. 
	Sincerely, 
	Lisa J. Stevenson Acting General Counsel 
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	7 I. INTRODUCTION 8 This matter was generated by a Complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission 9 (the “Commission”).  The Complaint alleges that Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Soh Suzuki in 
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	10 his official capacity as treasurer (“Committee”) and Rashida Tlaib (collectively, “Respondents”) 11 violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”), and Commission 12 regulations by converting campaign funds to personal use by making two candidate salary 13 payments to Tlaib after the date of the general election.14 As set forth below, the Commission exercises its prosecutorial discretion and dismisses 15 the allegation that Respondents violated 52 U.S.C. § 30114(b) and 11 C.F.
	2 
	3

	The Complaint also alleges Tlaib violated the law by running in a Congressional district in which she did not live and refusing to disclose income and the source thereof on her financial disclosure forms for the U.S. House of Representatives upon her election.  The Commission lacks jurisdiction to consider these allegations. 
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	1 Economic & Social Justice in Detroit.On May 1, 2018, Tlaib reduced her employment by 85%, 
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	2 reducing her total income to about $200 per week.  During the candidate’s primary election 
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	3 campaign and carrying on through the general election campaign, the Committee paid Tlaib a bi
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	4 weekly salary of $2,000.  The Complaint identifies two salary payments totaling $17,500 that 
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	9 and was no longer a candidate.  Respondents contend that “[a]ll salary payments were for the 
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	BY ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY mbrewer@goodmanacker.com Mark Brewer, Esq. Goodman Acker P.C. 17000 West Ten Mile, Second Floor Southfield, MI 48075 
	BY ELECTRONIC MAIL ONLY mbrewer@goodmanacker.com Mark Brewer, Esq. Goodman Acker P.C. 17000 West Ten Mile, Second Floor Southfield, MI 48075 

	TR
	RE: 
	MUR 7579 Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Soh Suzuki in his official capacity as treasurer Rashida Tlaib 

	Dear Mr. Brewer: 
	Dear Mr. Brewer: 


	On March 20, 2019, the Federal Election Commission notified your clients, Rashida Tlaib for Congress and Soh Suzuki in his official capacity as treasurer and Rashida Tlaib, of a complaint alleging violations of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended.  A copy of the complaint was forwarded to your clients at the time.  Upon further review of the allegations contained in the complaint and information supplied by you, the Commission, on December 2, 2021, voted to dismiss the matter and close the
	Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record within 30 days.  See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 2, 2016). 
	MUR 7579 Letter to Mark Brewer, Esq. Page 2 
	If you have any questions, please contact Thaddeus H. Ewald, the attorney assigned to this matter, at (202) 694-1650. 
	Sincerely, Mark Allen Assistant General Counsel 
	Enclosure: Factual and Legal Analysis 
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